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The Oliver Hazard Perry Baxter residence is an excellent example of
the composite Victorian style embellished as it is with striking
innovative details that are characteristic of the Queen Anne. The
house, built of red rusticated sandstone from the Castle Rock area
in Colorado, is a single detached unit two and one half stories in
height and irregular in shape. A carriage house stands detached
from the main house.

Beginning with a basically square plan, the architect grafted hexa-
gonal shaped turrets to the front facade and a two story bay to the
west side. At ground level, a pitched roof verandah, commencing at
the southeast corner, spreads westward along the front to the south-
west corner where it sweeps around the turret before continuing
north toward and around the bay to its conclusion. Supported by
tapering simply turned columns, its frieze is distinguished by a
row of classical dentils that are repeated nowhere else on eave or
gable fascia trim. Highlighting the airy verandah is the south side
main entrance announced by a round arch that suddenly and lightly
springs from the horizontal into a graceful curve brought to a
climax with a beautifully turned finial. The balustrade enclosing
the verandah is composed of a series of rectangles formed by square
balysters separated by stepped horizontal spacers. The eastward
exit is sheltered by a portico of similar design except that the
verandah-like pitched roof is replaced by a flat roof that has been
crowned by intricately styled cast iron cresting.

The rusticated sandstone-has been. economically highlighted with
gently molded wood trim. Eaves and gables, supported by strategi-
cally placed corner brackets and consoles, are molded except at the .
apex of the westward projecting gables where panels have been cut to
allow patches of light to play upon the stone facing behind. A
wooden paneled motif concludes the west facing bay while the south
facing gable forms a pediment which encloses a louvered vent flanked
by panels.

Windows, double hung and most often surmounted by transoms, are ample
and numerous throughout the house. One east side transom encases

a stained glass window; this and the double front doors with their
overhead transom, along with the unoriginal semielliptical arched
window in a south facing second story, provide the only colored vari-
ation to the otherwise clear lights.
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The roof is basically hipped. However, a profusion of gables and
hexagonal projections pierce its basic simplicity and make of the
skyline a welter of ridges and valleys. The built-in water col-
lection system along the south side spares the house of the need
to clutter the eaves with gutters. Four chimneys sprout through
the roof in fluted relief at the gable ends while the main chimney
straddles the ridge line. Like the rusticated building facing, the
chimneys are also constructed of laid up sandstone.

Visitors approaching the house beneath the arched verandah entrance-
way are greeted by a massive Romanesque arch of radiating voussoirs
supported by two truncated double columns topped with carved terra
cotta capitals. Just inside the arch, a double pair of six oak
panel doors, enclosing twin leaded stained glass windows, open into
the interior. Major features there include extensive use of golden
oak, a beautifully carved staircase with a stained glass window
between floors, and three fireplaces--one silver, one polished
steel, and one black iron.

The main alteration to the home consists of the addition of the
chapel built directly over the front door on the second floor.
It is gabled and faced with white shingles. This was actually

an open porch which was enclosed in 1942. 1In the rear, the porch
has been enclosed with red smooth dressed stone to make room for
an office. Both of these modifications are minor.
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Oliver Hazard Perry Baxter and the house that bears his name each
possess importance sufficient to merit deserved recognition. Mr.
Baxter was one of Pueblo's outstanding local figures, and the house
is a unique example of Victorian architecture in the region.

Oliver Hazard Perry Baxter, the first owner of the home, had a pro-

found influence on the development of Pueblo. Born October 1, 1835,
Baxter left Indiana in search of gold. En route to Arizona in 1862,
he stopped in Pueblo and remained there, establishing a cattle ranch
about ten miles east of town on the Arkansas River; this ranch pros-
peted.

Baxter, appointed the first Territorial Commissioner in this region,
supervised the building of the first courthouse made of hewn logs,
18 x 24 feet in size. He was also responsible for building the
first grist mill on land which twenty years later he gave to the
U.S. Government for the Post Office and Federal Building. Baxter
also organized the Stockgrowers' National Bank with cattle baron .
Charles Goodnight. 1In addition, he established the first domestic
gas plant, electrical plant, and water system for Pueblo. : He also
conceived and organized the pueblo Club which was eventually to be-
come the Pueblo Chamber of Commerce. o

Baxter's interest and promotion in the development of Pueblo did not
cease. In 1890, he chaired a committee to promote the building of
Mineral Palace which, in 1891, became a show place for the world's
finest mineral collection. 1In 1899, a luxurious opera house was
built on property owned by Baxter and the Thatcher Brothers (the
Grand Opera House was designed by Louis Sullivan); Baxter and the
Thatcher Brothers donated $115,000 to help cover the costs of con-
struction.
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It was in 1893 that Baxter built his sumptuous home across the street
from the John Thatcher Mansion (Rosemont--listed on the National
Register). With its open front porch and distinctive furniture-
like ornamentation, it is in part typical of the Eastlake style.
The fenestration is complex, with the windows taking various forms.
This, along with its irregular shape, is characteristic of the
Queen Anne style. The intricate doorway, stained glass windows,
and fine craftsmanship indicate that this structure was built dur-
ing an era of great personal wealth. The unique and individualis-
tic mix of stylized Victorian elements clearly depict a local
architectural heritage borrowed from the East and adapted to the
particular tastes of this area.

The Baxter Home has had only four occupants in 83 years. It was
purchased in 1941 by Mrs. Spencer Penrose of Colorado Springs

(the Penroses were a prominent family in the silver mining business)
and presented to the Catholic Diocese. It has been well maintained
and is recognized as one of the outstanding mansions of a prominent
citizen in pueblo.



